Public Document Pack
Halls, Cemeteries & Allotments
Committee Meeting of Witney Town Council

Monday, 8th March, 2021 at 6.00 pm

To members of the Halls, Cemeteries & Allotments Committee - M Jones, J Aitman, L Ashbourne, T Ashby,
O Collins, L Duncan, V Gwatkin and J King (and all other Town Councillors for information).

You are hereby summonsed to the above meeting to be held in the Virtual Meeting Room via Zoom for the
transaction of the business stated in the agenda below.

Admission to Meetings
All Council meetings are open to the public and press unless otherwise stated.

Admission to this meeting will be online by virtue of The Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels
(Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Local Authority & Police & Crime Panels Meetings)(England & Wales) Regulations
2020.

Zoom login details of this meeting will be published on the Council’s website prior to the meeting.

Recording of Meetings

Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 the council’s public meetings may be
recorded, which includes filming, audio-recording as well as photography.

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the Town Clerk or
Democratic Services Officer know before the start of the meeting.

Agenda

1. Apologies for Absence

To consider apologies and reasons for absence.

Committee Members who are unable to attend the meeting should notify the Deputy Town Cl¢
(adam.clapton@witney-tc.gov.uk) prior to the meeting, stating the reason for absence.

Standing Order 30(a)(v) permits the appointment of substitute Councillors to a Committee whose role is
replace ordinary Councillors at a meeting of a Committee if ordinary Councillors of the Committee hec
confirmed to the Proper Officer before the meeting that they are unable to attend.

2. Declarations of Interest
Members are reminded to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in any items under consideration
at this meeting in accordance with the Town Council’s Code of Conduct.

3. Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)
To receive and consider the minutes of the Halls, Cemeteries & Allotments Committee meeting held on
18 January 2021.
a) Minutes - 18 January 2021

To agree these minutes as a correct record of the meeting to be signed by the Chair.

Date of Publication 2 March 2021

Page 1


mailto:adam.clapton@witney-tc.gov.uk

b) Matters Arising - 18 January 2021

To receive matters arising from the minutes of the Halls, Cemeteries & Allotments Committee
meeting held on 18 January 2021, not covered elsewhere on the agenda (Questions on the
progress on any item).

Public Participation

The meeting will adjourn for this item.

Members of the public may speak for a maximum of five minutes each during the period of put
participation, in line with Standing Order 42. Matters raised shall relate to the following items on t
agenda.

Corn Exchange Working Party Minutes (Pages 7 - 8)

To receive the minutes of the Corn Exchange Working Party meeting held on 1 March 2021 and
consider the recommendations contained therein.

Operational Report (Pages 9 - 14)

To receive and consider the report of the Operations and Estates Advisor.

Cemeteries & Closed Churchyards

To receive and consider the following items concerning the Cemeteries & Closed Churchyards:

a) Cemeteries Update (Pages 15 - 16)

To receive and consider the report of the Operations and Estates Advisor.

b) Tower Hill Cemetery Access (Pages 17 - 76)
To receive and consider the report of the Operations & Estates Advisor, accompanying inclusive
access audit and quotes for work regarding pedestrian access at Tower Hill Cemetery.
Allotments

To receive the following items concerning the Allotments:

a) Allotments Update (Pages 77 - 92)

To receive and consider the report of the Operations and Estates Advisor.

b) Lakeside Allotments Access Road (Pages 93 - 94)

To receive and consider correspondence concerning the access road to lakeside allotments,

Ducklington.
—
Sl- l -~
Town Clerk
Town Hall, Market Square Mrs Sharon Groth
Witney, Oxon FSLCC fCMgr SR
0X28 6AG TOWN COUNCIL &

T: 01993 704379

F: 01993 771893

info@witney-tc.gov.uk Cllr Joy Aitman
www.witney-tc.gov.uk

Page 2


mailto:info@witney-tc.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 3

HALLS, CEMETERIES & ALLOTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE
WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL

Held on Monday, 18 January 2021
At 6.00 pm in the Virtual Meeting Room via Zoom
Present:

Councillor M Jones (Chair)

Councillors: L Ashbourne O Collins

T Ashby L Duncan
Officers: Nicky Cayley Democratic Services Officer

Adam Clapton Office Manager

Sharon Groth Town Clerk

John Hickman Operations & Estates Officer

Tomas Smith Venue Manager

Angus Whitburn Compliance and Environment Officer
Others: 0 members of the public.

H21  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for their absence were received from Clirs Aitman and Gwatkin.

H22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in matters to be discussed at the meeting.
H23 MINUTES

The Committee received and considered the minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2020.
There were no matters arising.

RESOLVED: that the minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2020 be agreed and signed
by the Chair as a correct record

H24  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There were no members of the public present for this meeting.

H25  CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN

The Committee was required to set its aims and objectives for inclusion in the Council’s
Corporate Strategic Plan and to agree its priorities for 2021/22, 2022/23 and beyond.

Page 3



H26

H27

H28

Halls, Cemeteries & Allotments - 18 January 2021

This Committee’s immediate/top priorities had been identified by the Task and Finish Group as
being: -

a) Corn Exchange — Phase 2 — seating, lighting and sound
b) Open Spaces Strategy — report due April 2021
¢) Windrush Place — new allotments
d) Cemeteries — review accessibility
All members agreed with these priorities.

RESOLVED: that the Committee agreed with the priorities as listed.

OPERATIONAL REPORT

The Committee received and considered the report of the Operations and Estates Officer on
progress and repairs since the last meeting, including coloured light installation in the Corn
exchange, work at Tower Hill Cemetery, PAT testing, works at 51 Market Square and an
asbestos survey at 51, 51a and 51b Market Square,

RESOLVED: that the report be noted.

ALLOTMENTS UPDATE

The Committee received and considered the report of the Operations and Estates Officer,
covering Newland, Hailey Road and Lakeside sites. He advised the Committee that the
composters had now arrived but he had been told by the new members of the Allotment
Association that they were now not wanted. He suggested they be installed at the new
allotments at Windrush Place.

Regarding Windrush Place, there had been a request for a composting toilet but the new
members of the Allotment Association Committee had changed this to a fully plumbed toilet.
However, the main sewer was some distance away and the cost to connect to this or a
cesspit/septic tank would be prohibitive. Once this had been explained the Association
Committee had agreed to a composting toilet.

Members also considered the provision of a 3 bay composting area but decided that it would be
better to offer a composter to each individual plot at Windrush Place instead.

RECOMMENDED: that the report be noted and that the Council offers to purchase an
individual composter for each plot on Windrush Place. The Committee would be updated on the
Association’s response at the next meeting.

CORN EXCHANGE WORKING PARTY MINUTES

Members received and considered the minutes of the Corn Exchange Working Parties held on 7
December 2020 and 11 January 2021.

RECOMMENDED: that the minutes of the Corn Exchange Working Parties held on 7
December 2020 and 11 January 2021 and the recommendations contained therein be approved.

Page 4



H29

H30

H31

Halls, Cemeteries & Allotments - 18 January 2021

PUBLIC HALLS REPORT

The Committee received and considered the report of the Office Manager on the public halls
which were currently closed due to national restrictions. The Committee was advised that the
Oxford Arts Consultants had decided they could no longer take on the project and therefore
Officers were looking for a new consultant. A meeting had been set up with Drama By Design
for the following day.

RESOLVED: that the report be noted.

CEMETERY REGULATIONS - REVIEW OF MEMORIALS, GARDENS AND TRIBUTES

The Committee received and considered the comprehensive report of the Operations and
Estates Officer. Members decided more information was required and asked for a further report
on certain items.

RESOLVED: that the report be noted and: -

1. that the Operations and Estates Officer brings back a report to the next meeting on kerb
sets, memorial crosses, handbooks and the upcoming grave clearances.

TOWER HILL CEMETERY - NEW PUBLIC/PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

The Committee received and considered the report of the Operations and Estates Officer on the
possibility of a new pedestrian entrance at Tower Hill Cemetery.

One member felt that it was not really necessary and that it would encourage parking in the
surrounding residential areas. He also wanted to be reassured that public consultation would be
meaningful.

The Chair advised that the main consultation could be done via an insert in the newsletter and
she believed that it would be meaningful.

Members also voted on recommendations to consult with Exclusive Right of Burial holders in the
area that would be affected, and also the owner of a bench in close proximity. 4 members were
in favour of the recommendations, with one abstention.

RESOLVED: that the report be noted and: -

1. that the Council consults with the existing Exclusive Right of Burial Holders on Sections
13 and 9 regarding the proposed new pedestrian access;

2. that the owner of the memorial bench affected by the installation of this footpath
should be consulted;

3. that an insert is considered for the newsletter/annual satisfaction survey to gauge local
residents’ opinion on the proposal as per resolution 2 on 14 September 2020 minute
H275 — that once the issues of permission was resolved, if it was possible to go ahead,

thought be given on how to gauge residents’ opinion on the proposal;

4, that Officers establish if a faculty from the Diocese of Oxford is required;

Page 5



H32

Halls, Cemeteries & Allotments - 18 January 2021

5. that quotes be refreshed given the time lapse and two further quotes be sought in line
with the Council’s financial regulations.

TOWER HILL CEMETERY - VEHICULAR ACCESS

The Committee received and considered the report of the Compliance and Environment Officer.
However, members decided that the first step should be to commission a disability consultant to
give an overview as vehicular accessibility and disabled accessibility were quite different things.

RESOLVED: that the report be noted and: -

1. that a disability consultant be employed to give advice on Tower Hill Cemetery. This
would be delegated to officers;

2. that the bin be repositioned as soon as possible.

The meeting closed at: 6.46 pm

Chair

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 5

CORN EXCHANGE WORKING PARTY MEETING OF
WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL

Held on Monday, 1 March 2021
At 5.00 pm in the Virtual Meeting Room via Zoom
Present:

Councillor O Collins (Chair)

Councillors: L Ashbourne L Duncan
J Aitman J King
Officers: Adam Clapton Deputy Town Clerk
Tomas Smith Venue & Events Officer
Nicky Cayley Project Officer
Others: no members of the public.
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no interests declared at the meeting.
3 MINUTES

The Working Party received and considered the minutes of the meeting held on 11 January
2021.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Corn Exchange Working Party meeting held on 11 January 2021 are an
accurate account and should be signed by the Chair.

4 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There were no members of the public present.

5 EXCLUSION OF PRESS & PUBLIC

As there were no members of the public present, it was not necessary to resolve that the press
and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting.

Page 7



Corn Exchange Working Party - 1 March 2021

CORN EXCHANGE PHASE TWO REFURBISHMENT

Members received and considered the report of the Venue Manager concerning the
development of the Main Hall at the Corn Exchange and noted correspondence from Witney
Town Hall Charity concerning an unsuccessful grant request.

The Working Party discussed the merits of three theatrical consultant quotes presented as part
of the report, the companies quoting to provide a technical specification for tendering on
seating, lighting and audio equipment. The commitment to create a desirable community arts
facility performing space for Witney was re-affirmed and it was agreed that additional elements
offered in the quotes, concerning continuing project management would be beneficial in
ensuring a quality product.

Members welcomed Mr T Powell’s offer of assistance with the project, and as a former Corn
Exchange user and theatrical advisor, his expertise in discussions with the consultants on the
technical tender specification would be invaluable. The Working Party agreed that further
consultation with potential user groups should take place, possibly before the Town Council goes
to tender on each element; A webinar presentation or meetings might be possible formats and
the consultants may be able to assist with this in consultation with officers.

There was further discussion on the maximum number of persons permitted in the Main Hall
under fire regulations and it was agreed clarification was needed.

The Working Party were grateful to receive confirmation that a second door was not required
for the main kitchen and agreed that a serving hatch was not necessary at this time.

RECOMMENDED:

1. That the report be noted, and: -

2. That Drama by Design be employed as consultants on the refurbishment of the Main Hall at
the Corn Exchange to include seating, lighting and audio elements. The cost being £7350.00,

covered from the existing consultancy budget for the project, and

3. That an additional budget of £2000.00 is requested from the Town Council to cover
construction supervision by Drama by Design at a cost of £4200.00, and

4. That Mr T Powell is invited to meet with the consultants to advise on equipment required as
a former user and theatre production advisor, and

5. That the timeframe and format for consultation with user groups be delegated to the Project
Officer and Venue & Events Officer and brought back to the next meeting, and

6. That no further works are undertaken on a second entrance or hatch to the main kitchen at
the Corn Exchange, and

7. That Officers confirm the maximum capacity of the Main Hall, seated and un-seated prior to
any discussion with the consultants and report back to the next meeting.

The meeting closed at: 5.45 pm

Chair

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 6

HALLS, CEMETERIES AND ALLOTMENTS COMMITTEE

Date: 8t March 2021

Title: Operational Report

Contact Officer: Operations and Estates Officer — John Hickman
Background

The purpose of this report is to update Members on the progress of improvements and repairs
since the last meeting.

Current Situation

Tree Works have been carried out to the boundary crack willow trees at Lakeside allotment
by Contracted tree surgeons.

The Works team have cleared the top part of the ditch at Lakeside allotments on the boundary
with the Oxford Witney Hotel.

Windrush Place Allotments are nearing completion by the Consortium and will hopefully be
handed to Witney Town Council to complete ASAP ready to be handed over to the allotment
association.

Grounds Contractors have reduced the Laurel hedging in Tower Hill Cemetery.

The overgrown bed at Tower Hill cemetery in the lower are between the two chapels has now
been cleared and cleaned out and planted with shrubs, by grounds Contractors and the Works
Team.

The Works team have repaired the gent’s urinals leaking overhead cistern at Burwell Hall.

Part of the work team are working in 51 Market Square in preparation for use as council
office’s, whenever they are not required for burials.

Electrical contractors have installed addition electrical requirements within 51 Market
Square.

Fire alarm, CCTV camera and intruder alarm systems have been installed in 51 Market Square.
A structural survey has been carried out of beams in 51 Market Square and Lilys attic.

A further insect investigation is being carried out on timbers within Lily’s attic and 51 Market
Square to ensure that insect activity is no longer active.

Page 9



A main beam in no 51 is badly decayed and will require replacement the structural surveyors
are considering the scope of works for this. These works could cause disturbance to the main
Town Hall Office on the first floor when being undertaken.

Environmental impact

Having declared a Climate Change Emergency at its Council meeting on 26 June 2019 — with
this in mind Councillors should have due regard to the environmental impact of any decisions
they make with regard to its facilities and services it operates.

Risk
In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any
action it can take to limit or negate its liability.

Financial Implications

Obviously the works to the Town Hall/ground floor offices and shop to replace the decaying
beam is going to have cost implications — which are currently unquantified as further advice
is being sought.

Recommendations

Members are invited to note the report.

Page 10






This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7a

HALLS, CEMETERIES AND ALLOTMENTS COMMITTEE

Date: 8t March 2021

Title: Cemeteries Update

Contact Officer: Operations and Estates Officer - John Hickman
Background

The purpose of this report is to update Members on the progress of improvements and repairs
since the last meeting.

St Mary’s Church Yard

Repairs to the two entrance Pillars replacement of the steel Arch and repairs to the front wall
are scheduled to start on Wednesday 3™ March.

St Mary’s and Holy Trinity Church Yard — stability testing

All information regarding the faculty to carry out the Stability testing of tombs and memorials
within St Mary’s and Holy Trinity church yards has now been provided to the Diocese of
Oxford it is hoped the faculty to carry out these works will be provided in the near future.

Cemeteries Rules and Regulations

Due to time constraints the Operations and Estates Officer & Cemeteries Officer have still to
adjust these with the changed regulations agreed by council. Also the Cemeteries Leaflet has
still to be adjusted as requested by council.

Environmental impact

Having declared a Climate Change Emergency at its Council meeting on 26 June 2019 — with
this in mind Councillors should have due regard to the environmental impact of any decisions
they make with regard to its facilities and services it operates.

Risk
In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any

action it can take to limit or negate its liability. Consideration should be given to the Cemetery
Access Risk Assessment in making a decision regarding the new access.

Financial implications

Works will be covered within existing budgets.

Page 15



Recommendations

Members are invited to note this report.

Page 16



Agenda Iltem 7b

HALLS, CEMETERIES AND ALLOTMENTS COMMITTEE

Date: 8t March 2021
Title: Tower Hill Cemetery:

a) New Public/Pedestrian Access — Update
b) Vehicular Access — Accessibility Audit

Contact Officer: Operations and Estates Officer - John Hickman

Background

The purpose of this report is to update Members on the progress since the last meeting —
Minute H31 and H32 refers.

a) New Public/Pedestrian Access — Update

The letters to the relevant exclusive rights of burial owners’ have been prepared and will be
sent out on 15 March 2021 followed by the public consultation leaflet to the Smiths Estate
on 22" March 21. Deadline for responses is 7™ May in order to be able to report back to the
Halls, Cemeteries and Allotment meeting in June.

Additional quotes to open a gap in the boundary wall to make an additional pedestrian access
and has had the quotes for the footpath reviewed to bring up to date and also to include
making the path wider 1.8m as recommended in the Access Audit.

A suitable gate and Posts has been selected for the new entrance, will this gate be left
unlocked giving pedestrian access 24/7 or is it to be locked and opened in line with the
vehicular access gates.

b) Vehicle Access

The DDA report regarding TH Cem access requested by council was carried out on 25 January
2021, the report makes several recommendations regarding the disabled access to the
cemetery, requests maps and terrain guides at entrances, alterations to the car parking
arrangements, maintenance of footpaths, benches, handrails and steps. They further
recommend that the current policy around site access is maintained and that the suggested
new pedestrian footpath is a minimum of 1.8m wide with 2m preferred. Some of these
recommendations will require Officers to review if they are possible to accomplish i.e.
handrails and steps do to the limitations within the cemetery.

Page 17



Environmental impact

Having declared a Climate Change Emergency at its Council meeting on 26 June 2019 — with
this in mind Councillors should have due regard to the environmental impact of any decisions
they make with regard to its facilities and services it operates.

Risk
In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any

action it can take to limit or negate its liability. Consideration should be given to the Cemetery
Access Risk Assessment in making a decision regarding the new access.

Financial implications

A budget amount will need to be made available to cover the associated costs of carrying out
the recommended works in the report. There is currently money available in the 301/4036
Tower Hill cemetery maintenance budget perhaps these funds could be rolled over into
2021/22 financial year to cover all or part of the associated costs of these works.

Recommendations

Members are invited to note this report and consider the following:

1. Maintaining TH cemetery access policy as it is at present as recommended in the
access audit.

2. Setting an additional budget sum to cover the associated costs of Cemetery Access
Audit reports recommendations.

3. Rolling the remaining 2020/21, 301/4036 maintenance budget into the 2021/22
financial year to enable the recommendations in the report to be carried out.

4. Officers to gain quotes for associated works and materials recommended within
the access audit.

5. Consideration as to whether the new pedestrian access gate will be left unlocked
or a policy set as to opening times for the gate.

Page 18



6T abed

Access Audit

Tower Hill Cemetery
Witney Town Council
Curbridge Rd

Witney

OX28 5ES

25 January 2021

About Access Ltd

63 Wilson Street Office 01482 651101
Anlaby, Hull info@aboutaccess.co.uk
East Yorkshire HU10 7AJ www.aboutaccess.co.uk

Access Audits | Plan Appraisals | Access Statements

Training | Advice on Accessibility | Nationwide Coverage

Company No 4117369 VAT No 763 9300 21

Version: Original

About ||

Access

...for an inclusive world



0z abed

Version

Version

Original

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Reason for change

Issue date

30/01/2021

page 2 of 42 pages



12 9bed

Contents

Executive Summary

Introduction

The Report

Terms and definitions

The Access Audit

1 Getting to the site

2 Site -entrances

2.1 Vehicle entrance

2.2 Welch roundabout entrance

2.3 Kissing gate entrance

3 Site - car parking and vehicle access
4 Site - pedestrian routes

5 Seating

6 Site - new path and entrance

7 Chapel

8 Signage

Declaration

Appendix 1.  Disability & Legislation

Appendix 2. Handrail design

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

11

11

12

12

13

13

14

18

20

21

21

22

24

25

33

Recommendations by Priority

34

page 3 of 42 pages



22 abed

Executive Summary

This Disability Access Audit (the Audit) was carried out by NRAC
consultant lan Streets, during January 2021, at the request of

John Hickman of Witney Town Council.

The Audit was carried out via a series of observations and physical
measurements which are based on: Approved Documents of the
Building Regulations; Equality Act Codes of Practice; BS8300-1 and 2:
2018 Design of an accessible and inclusive built environment. External &

Buildings. Code of Practice.

Where possible and reasonable to do so, improvements have been
suggested which should lead to greater accessibility without impacting

on the character of the building.

No single action will guarantee that a building meets the requirements
of the Equality Act. However, in the course of this Audit the following
features were deemed to be of particular high risk and should be

addressed as a matter of priority.
Entrances

There is only signage to the vehicle entrance and this does not advise
that it leads to the car park. The other entrances provide no signage.
When approaching from the Welch roundabout it is not obvious if this
is the Tower Hill Cemetery. Providing signage to each of the entrances is

recommended.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Access to grave side

There are discussions about access to the site and in particular to the
upper area of the site where there is restricted vehicle access. One
suggestion is that restrictions to vehicle access is removed and that all
the service roads are opened up. The other is that this is a potential
safety risk. The mixing of vehicles and pedestrians should always be
done with caution. There are certain groups of people who will either
not hear, see or understand the risk a moving vehicle presents. The
driver of a vehicle may think that they have been seen or heard and

act accordingly. The present policy is for people to ring up and request
access. If the current parking provision is not sufficient for disabled
people an option to consider is make it all Blue Badge holders parking
only. The present provision should be monitored to see if this is the
case. We have recommended that two accessible bays are provided as a
minimum and that a further two enlarged bays are also provided making

four bays.
Terrain guide

The site has steep paths which follow the natural contours of the land
making it not possible to alter. Providing people with the information
about the steep paths lets them make an informed decision about using
an entrance at the Welch roundabout to go to the upper part of the
cemetery or come in at the vehicle entrance. Providing a terrain guide

can help with this, it can also show where seating can be found. This

page 4 of 42 pages



Executive Summary (cont’d)

guide could be at the entrance notice boards and or available on line.

ez abed

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021 page 5 of 42 pages



yZ abed

Introduction

This report has been made for and on behalf of the Witney Town Council
and carried out by About Access Ltd. The report may only be copied with
the consent of About Access Ltd and must not be reproduced in any

other format.
The Audit:

e Was carried out following a site visit involving visual inspection and
measurement. The weather was sunny and cold with the ground covered

with snow and ice.

e Assessed the current state of accessibility and usability of the

buildings by people with a range of impairments.

e Givesan opinion of the building at a single pointin time,

highlighting areas forimprovement and prioritising action.

About Access Ltd has taken all reasonable steps to interpret the Acts,
Regulations and Approved Codes of Practice. Courts of Law can only
interpret these. No guarantees can be given that during any subsequent
visit by inspectors with statutory powers other non-compliances may not
be found. About Access Ltd will not accept any responsibility for any loss

arising as a result.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Description

Tower Hill Cemetery was opened for burials on the 1st January 1857.
There is a single vehicle entrance on to the site, this is off Curbridge Rd.
There are three pedestrian access points in to the grounds, these are
the vehicle entrance on Curbridge Rd, the entrances from the Welch

Roundabout and the kissing gate.

The car park is small and not sign posted. There is a one way system for

vehicles entering the site but all have to leave by the same entry point.

Tower Hill (A4095) and Curbridge Rd run parallel to the cemetery with
a footway to one side only, this means that a lot of pedestrians use the

footways within the grounds.

The site slopes from the car park area down to Tower Hill. There are no

steps to the site, level differences are dealt with by slopes.
Seating can be found around the cemetery, this comes in various styles.

The cemetery is open from Monday to Friday 9 am -4 pm and Saturdays
9:30 am - 1:30 pm, with dates for ‘special occasions’ being listed and the
cemetery being open 24 hours on these dates. There is no lighting to the

site.

At the entrance next to the Welch roundabout is a building that is let to
the Co-op, this did not form part of the audit. There are a further two

buildings both of similar appearance, the un-consecrated chapel is used

page 6 of 42 pages



Introduction (cont’d)

as a store the other referred to as the Chapel is occasionally opened for

services on request.

Gz abed

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021 page 7 of 42 pages



9z abed

The Report

The report contains descriptions of how the physical features and
other elements of the building are found at the time of the visit.
Recommendations are made within each section. The priorities should

be read in context of the report.
The priorities are: -

1. Thisitem causes a major barrier to access or may be a health and
safety issue and should be given immediate consideration or action. For
example, entry to a building may be difficult so the recommendation to

overcome this should be acted on immediately.
Time scale - action recommended immediately.
M. Thisitem centres on management of the building or policy.

Timescale - This requires immediate action even if there is no issue at

present a policy/procedure should be developed ahead of issue arising.

2. Thisitem causes a less significant barrier to access. For example,

modification may be needed to an existing feature, e.g. signage.
Time scale - As soon as practicably possible for the recommendation.

3. Thisis afeature that presents a barrier to access, but it is felt
reasonable for improvements to be carried out as part of general day-to-

day maintenance.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Time scale - In relation to the recommendation this could be as routine

works or when next decorating.

P. These are works that can be regarded as a project. They generally
require a plan to be developed and will take longer than previous

recommendations to carry out.

QW. Quick Wins are works that can be regarded as easy to do because
little cost or effort is required. This will be put along side a Red

recommendation.

page 8 of 42 pages



)2 9bed

Terms and definitions

Access: approach, entry, horizontal and vertical movement or exit,,

including in cases of emergency.

Accessible route: any route that is used to approach a building or to

move between buildings or within a building.
Accessible: capable of being independently accessed and used.

BS8300: BS 8300-1 & 2: 2018 Design of an accessible and inclusive built
environment. External & Buildings. Code of Practices. This is UK based

guidance for designing to meet the needs of disabled people.

Blister pedestrian crossing surface: form of tactile paving whose
surface has parallel rows of flat-topped blisters (domes) to warn people
who are blind or partially sighted of the proximity of a carriageway at
pedestrian crossing points and other access points to a carriageway.
NOTE The paving is installed at the dropped kerbs of both controlled
and uncontrolled crossings. The colour of the paving is red for controlled
crossings (e.g. signal-controlled and zebra crossings) and generally buff

at other crossings.
Desire line: shortest or most easily navigated pedestrian route.

Flight (Steps and ramps): a continuous series of steps or continuous

ramp between two landings.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Footway: A path running alongside a vehicle route which is for the sole

use of pedestrians.

Handrails (Steps and ramps): component of stairs, steps or ramps that
provides guidance and support at hand level. NOTE A handrail might
form the top rail of guarding (balustrading), be supported independently
from guarding or be supported from a wall.

IWluminance: amount of light falling on a surface, measured in lumens

per square metre (Im/m2 ) or lux (Ix)

Impairment: This is the result of a person’s condition. For example, a
person with arthritis in the hand could be said to have impaired manual

dexterity.

Inclusive design: approach to the design of the environment, including
buildings and their surrounding spaces, and managed and natural

landscapes, to ensure that they can be accessed and used by everyone.

Level (Steps and ramps): gradient not steeper than 1:60.

Light reflectance value (LRV): total quantity of visible light reflected by
a surface at all wavelengths and directions when illuminated by a light
source. NOTE Surfaces that differ sufficiently in LRV can be distinguished

from one another by people who are blind or partially sighted.

Ramp: one or more inclined surfaces with a gradient no shallower than

page 9 of 42 pages



gz abed

Terms and definitions (cont’d)

1:20 and no steeper than 1:12.

Slope: inclined surface with a gradient steeper than 1:60 but no steeper
than 1:20.

Title Case: title Case is where the first letter of each word is a capital
letter followed by lower case letters. This is recommended because
people read by word shape and find it easier to read signs or instructions
given in Title Case rather than CAPITALS, where all letters are the same
height.

Tonal contrast: perception of a difference visually between one
surface or element of a building and another by reference to their light

reflectance values (LRV).

Way-finding: means of ensuring that someone can find their way, avoid

obstacles, and know when they have reached their destination.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

page 10 of 42 pages



The Access Audit

Ref Current Findings Recommendation Priority
1 Getting to the site
1.1 There is on road parking next to the cemetery, but bus stops

are more the 100 m away.

1.2 Public footways are firm and even. Dropped kerbs are provided Approach the Highways Department of the responsible authority 2
at street crossing points but no tactile warning (blister paving). requesting that tactile paving is provided to dropped kerbs at
To the controlled crossing next to the kissing gate entrance pedestrian crossing points.

blister paving has been provided.

6¢ abed

Crossing point at Welch roundabout
with no tactile paving

e

=i

13 The routes are free of hazards such as bollards and the like and
any lighting columns are out of the pedestrian route.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021 page 11 of 42 pages



Ref

2
2.1
211

.

3 212

D

w

o
213

Current Findings

Site - entrances

Vehicle entrance

Only the vehicle entrance has signage advising that this is

the Tower Hill Cemetery. Providing signage at all entrances
advising of the cemetery name is recommended to help
visitors new and old to the site not only know they have arrived
at the correct site but also to easily identify the entrances.

The vehicle entrance has signage that can be seen from the
road but nothing to indicate that it leads to the car park or that
it gives vehicle access to the upper area of the cemetery.

There is no visible signage advising
that this leads to the car park.

The signage at the entrance just within the grounds isin a
notice board. This has a plan of the cemetery and information
about opening times etc. It is placed at a height that will make
reading it difficult from a seated position or for people of short
stature.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation

Provide signage to cemetery entrances advising of the cemetery
name.

Provide information about car parking and vehicle access that can
be easily viewed from the road.

Provide information at an accessible height and location that has
firm and even ground beneath it.

Priority

page 12 of 42 pages



1€ abed

Ref Current Findings

2.14 There is no information about the topography of the site. There

are a number of paths that have steep gradients. A terrain
guide details the paths around the site and the gradients/
lengths of any paths that are not level. It can also show where
seating can be found. This could be available at the entrances
and/or on the web site so that it can be downloaded.

2.2 Welch roundabout entrance

221 The Welch entrance has open gates and leads directly off the
public footway. There is no signage at the entrance. Providing
a site map and a terrain guide would be of benefit to many
people.

2.3 Kissing gate entrance

2.3.1 This refuge area (the space free of the gate swing) has a
space of approximately 1500 x 1500 mm. This should allow a
manual wheelchair user space to move, it will not be suitable
for scooter users. At the time of my visit the vehicle gate next
to this was open. At the other entrances during opening
hours there is no obstacle to access. We recommend that the
main gate be held in the open position when the cemetery
is open as this is far easier for people to use rather than the
kissing gate. If worried about unauthorised vehicles using this
entrance it could be that the gate can be partially opened and
held in place.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation

Provide a terrain guide.

Provide information about the site (eg opening times), a map of
the site and a terrain guide.

Have the main gate held in the open position when the cemetery
is open.

Priority

page 13 of 42 pages



Z2< abed

Ref Current Findings

232 There is no signage at the entrance. Providing a site map and a
terrain guide would be of benefit to many people.

3 Site - car parking and vehicle access

3.1 Thereis a car park on the site but this is not signposted. On
the day of my visit snow was on the ground covering up any
markings. Providing post mounted signage helps in these
instances to identify parking bays and the parking area.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation

Provide information about the site (eg opening times), a map of
the site and a terrain guide.

Provide signage advising the car park location along with ground
painted and post mounted signage advising of the parking area
and parking bays.

Priority

page 14 of 42 pages



c¢ abed

Ref Current Findings Recommendation Priority

3.2 The parking area is positioned between railings but also Provide at least two accessible parking bays. 2
forms part of the vehicle access route around the site. Vehicle
access is required not only for members of the public but also
contractors and the grounds team.

The parking area could be defined as the space between
the diamond railings which is approximately 7 m wide x
17 m long. This area has to allow vehicles pass by those
that are parked in it. If you take the width of the service
road which is approximately 2.6 m as the minimum
width required for vehicles that leaves a 4.4 m for
vehicles to parkin.

An accessible parking bay is 4.8 m long with 1.2 m wide
hatching to the rear, overall length 6 m. Cars will need

to be parked on the diagonal to the diamond fencing or
parallel to it if the 2.6 m access route is to be maintained.

The width of an accessible parking bay is 2.4 m with

1.2 m wide hatching to one side, it is preferable if it is

to both sides, the overall width is 3.6 m. The length

of this area is approximately 17 m which means that
four accessible bays could be provided in this area.
BS8300- 1: 2018 states that religious buildings and
crematoria should provide a minimum of 2 spaces or 6%
whichever is the greater.

The parking area which measure
approximately 7 m wide x 17 m long.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021 page 15 of 42 pages



y€ abed

Ref

3.3

34

3.5

Current Findings

BS8300-1: 2018 also states that enlarged bays should be
provided to any car parking area. An enlarged bay is the
same overall size, including hatchings, of an accessible bay.
It is intended that these bays are available for anyone to use
but allow the extra space that someone who is temporarily
disabled for example a broken leg or parents wanting to get
children in and out of cars to fully open the car doors. They
also allow for increasing the accessible bay provision without
having to remark a whole section of car park.

The width of the service roads vary but do not provide
sufficient space to allow two vehicles to pass and stay on the
service road. There are no designated footways alongside the
service roads and both pedestrians and vehicles share the
same route.

At the present time anyone wanting to take a vehicle closer to

a grave in the upper area of the cemetery which is closed off to

vehicles have to ask for access and get the bollards preventing
vehicle access removed. Access can only be given when a
funeral or work alongside the service road is not taking place.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation

Provide the same number of enlarged bays as accessible bays.

Priority

page 16 of 42 pages



Ge abed

Ref

3.6

3.7

Current Findings

| understand that there are discussions taking place within
the Council about parking provision and vehicle access to and
around the site. As | understand it the following is a summary
of the arguments:

1.Restrict access to the parking area with vehicle access
allowed to other areas on request except at weekends
and other recognised days. Access is denied when work
is being carried out alongside the service roads. This is
the current policy.

2. Access is granted at all times the cemetery is open,
with access being denied when work is being carried out
alongside the service roads.

The volume and speed of traffic around the cemetery is

going to be low. However people with hearing or sight loss
may not hear or see vehicles approaching. People with sight
loss may look at a car and the driver think they have been

seen and assume it is safe to proceed. People with cognitive
impairments or neurodiverse people don’t always make eye
contact with drivers or understand the risks of moving vehicles.
Making eye contact and body language between driver and
pedestrian allows people to get a ‘feeling’ of what the other
may do. For these reasons | recommend that the present policy
of only opening vehicle access when requested is maintained.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation

Maintain current policy around site access.

Priority

page 17 of 42 pages



9¢ abed

Ref

4.1

4.2

4.3

Current Findings

Site - pedestrian routes

The pedestrian only paths around the site have a firm surface
with a typical width of approximately 1350 mm. They are

either tarmac or concrete. The routes which are shared by
pedestrians and vehicles have a typical width of 3.2 m. Paths
ideally should provide a minimum width of 1800 mm. Because
of the graves either side of the paths increasing the width is not
seen as feasible.

Generally the paths have an even surface, particularly to the
top of the cemetery. It is where the paths are concrete that the
joints between slabs have moved, these have the potential to
cause tripping. We recommend that maintenance is carried out
to make the joints between slabs flush.

There are a number of paths that have steep inclines as an
example the path from the Chapel heading up to the vehicle
entrance and the path from the kissing gate have a gradient

of around 1:7. These follow the natural contours of the land.
Paths should have gradients no steeper than 1:12, it is not seen
as feasible to alter these. Some people will find steps easier

to use than inclines, a long-term aim should be to add these if
feasible.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation

Provide flush joints between concrete slabs.

Consider adding steps alongside steep paths.

Priority

page 18 of 42 pages



Ref Current Findings

4.4 Where paths have gradients that are steeper than 1:20 they
should be treated as a ramp. That means handrails should
be provided. The path leading from the kissing gate has a
handrail to one side. The top of the handrail is between the
recommended height range of 900-1000 mm. The handrail
is rectangular in shape, it can still be used but the preferred
shape is round or oval. The supports do not allow the user
continual grip as the hand has to be removed when a support
is reached. It should be possible to run a hand along the full
length of the handrail and not have to move it because of a
support.

It is preferable if handrails are round
or oval and that supports do not get
in the way of a hand running along

/€ abed

the rail.

4.5 There had been heavy snow fall the day before my site visit,
although there was a thaw paths remained icy. There should
be a policy of ensuring paths remain free from potential slips
and trips, this could be snow/ice or fallen vegetation.

4.6 There is no lighting to the cemetery.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation

Consider providing handrails alongside paths with gradients
steeper than 1:20.

Ensure paths remain free from slips and trips.

Priority

page 19 of 42 pages



Ref Current Findings Recommendation

5 Seating

51 There are seats placed around the grounds, these are of
different designs.

52 The seats have backs with some having arm rests at the ends.
Itis good practice to provide a range of seating styles with and
without arm rests.

53 None of the seats provide an inclusive space alongside for a Provide seating with an inclusive space alongside for wheelchair
wheelchair user to sit. Best practice is also to provide some users.
seating with the arm rest set in one seat width allowing a
wheelchair user to side transfer. This space should have a firm
and even base with level access to it that also is firm and even.
It is probably unreasonable to add retrospectively but any new
seating should incorporate this.

8¢ abed

Some examples of the different seat styles but no space with firm and even ground alongside for a
wheelchair user.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Priority

page 20 of 42 pages



6E abed

Ref Current Findings Recommendation Priority

6 Site - new path and entrance

6.1 A new entrance and path is proposed from the north-west
corner. It is recommended that new paths should have a width
of at least 1800 mm with 2000 mm being the preferred width.
Pinch points of 1200 mm are acceptable.

7 Chapel
7.1 The Chapel is available on request.
7.2 There is level access in to the building. The entrance gate and

door provide a clear effective width of more than the minimum
recommended of 1000 mm.

7.3 The entrance door is fitted with a ring style handle, this Ensure staff provide assistance if required. M
appears to be an original feature. It should be possible to
operate door handles with the use of a clenched fist. People
will not be using this building on their own, staff can open and
close the door if a person cannot use the handle or the door is
too heavy.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021 page 21 of 42 pages



Ot abed

Ref

7.4

7.5

7.6

8.1

Current Findings

There are fixed pews within the building. There is no inclusive
space for a wheelchair user to sit. At the present time a
wheelchair user would have to either sit in the aisle or at

the front of the pews. The pews are raised up approximately
80 mm with a gap of 400 mm to reach the pew seat. A space
for a wheelchair user should be 900 mm wide x 1400 mm
deep plus unobstructed access route of 900 mm (preferably
1200 mm).

There are two steps up to the altar and lectern. The lectern
should be brought to the lower level if people are expected to
speak and cannot use the steps.

At the time of my visit it was not possible to assess the
illuminance levels as there was too much daylight entering the
building.

Signage

There is no wayfinding signage in the grounds. A visitor
most probably wont know which is the consecrated or un-
consecrated chapel or which are the different parts of the
cemetery when comparing to the layout plan that can be
found at the entrance and car park notice boards. Providing
basic wayfinding signage is recommended, for example this
could point to the different chapels, car park and memorial
wall.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation Priority
Provide an inclusive space for wheelchair users to sit. P
Move the lectern to the lower level if people cannot use the steps. M
Check the illuminance levels when daylight is poor and increase if M
necessary.

Provide way finding signage. 2

page 22 of 42 pages



Ref Current Findings Recommendation Priority

8.2 There are engraved marker stones to different burial areas, Ensure text is highlighted. 3
these can only be read from close up. The engraved text to
these stones is not always easy to identify as the highlighting to
the lettering has worn in some instances. The word ‘SECTION’
isin upper case, it is easier to read if the first letter is in upper
case with the rest in lower case as in ‘Section’.

Two examples of the section stones.

T abed

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021 page 23 of 42 pages



Declaration

We can confirm this access audit has been undertaken by lan Streets NRAC
Consultant of About Access Ltd.

Signed
xS
—_—, {QD_L!& b

lan Streets NRAC Consultant

Date 30" January 2021

2t abed

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021 page 24 of 42 pages



ey abed

Appendix 1. Disability & Legislation

Who is a disabled person?
Adisabled person is defined as someone who has a mental or physical
impairment that has a substantial effect on the ability to carry out

normal day-to-day activities.
Impairments are listed as:

. Mobility

+  Doing something with your hands

+  Physical coordination

«  Continence (controlling your bladder and bowels)

«  Ability to lift, carry or move everyday objects

«  Speech, hearing or eyesight

«  Memory or ability to concentrate, learn or understand or
«  Perception of the risk of physical danger.

Substantial means that it is more than minor or trivial.

Impairment covers, for example, long-term conditions like asthma or
diabetes and conditions that come and go. Mental impairments include
mental health conditions (e.g. bipolar disorder, depression), learning

difficulties (e.g. dyslexia) and learning disabilities (autism or Down’s

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

syndrome).

Making Adjustments

We at About Access take the view that it is physical features and policy
that make people disabled. For example, a building with a flight of steps
at the entrance will not be accessible to a person who uses a wheelchair.
But by providing a ramp of suitable design, a wheelchair would then be
able to enter the building. It is the steps that are disabling not the fact

that the person uses a wheelchair.

There are three options to consider when making adjustments.

+  Change the way things are done, formal or informal

policies, and rules.

+  Physical features:

- Remove,
- alter,
- avoid a physical feature

«  Provide auxiliary aids or services.

Requirement 1: change the way things are done. An organisation has
rules about the way it carries out its business, which could have been
written or adopted on the basis of ‘that’s the way we’ve always done it’

These rules may be a barrier to a disabled person.

page 25 of 42 pages



Y1 abed

Appendix 1. Disability & Legislation (cont’d)

These rules may have to change or be dropped so that they no longer
make it unreasonably difficult for a disabled person to use the service or

amenity.

Requirement 2: consider physical features that are disabling. Where
features are disabling then making adjustments should be considered in

the following order:

+  Remove the feature
« Alteritso thatit no longer has the disabling effect
+ Avoid the feature

Provide a reasonable alternative method of making the service available

to disabled people.

Requirement 3: provide auxiliary aids and services if this would let

disabled people use the organisation’s services.

The type of auxiliary aid or service will depend on what the organisation
does or offers. Where equipment is offered, it must be in working order,
maintained and staff must be trained in its use. Also, the need for back-
up service should be considered. The type of auxiliary aid would typically

be a hearing enhancement system - induction loop.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Adjustments

In most environments, reasonable adjustments have to be made to
remove physical or any other types of barrier - created by policies or
attitudes for example - that could make it difficult or impossible for

disabled person to use or access the building.

The aim of making the adjustment is to ensure that a disabled person
(e.g. someone who may be deaf or visually impaired or have difficulty
in walking) can use the building or service to a standard as close as

reasonably possible to the standard usually offered to a non-disabled

person.

What is seen as reasonable will depend on the type of service being

offered.
Things to consider are:

«  Would the suggested steps be effective in improving

accessibility?
« Isit practical to take the recommended steps?

«  How much disruption will be caused while making the

adjustments?

page 26 of 42 pages



Gy abed

Appendix 1. Disability & Legislation (cont’d)

Types of Discrimination

Direct

This occurs when someone receives worse treatment than someone
who does not have a disability. For example, a person is asked to leave a

restaurant because they have Tourette’s Syndrome.

Discrimination Arising from Disability

This occurs when someone is discriminated against because of
something connected with their disability and the unfair treatment
cannot be justified. This differs from direct discrimination, where the
discrimination results because of the disability. In ‘arising from disability’
the discrimination is because of something associated with the
disability.

Discrimination will not be unlawful if it was not known or it could not

have reasonably been expected to know that the person was disabled.

This means that reasonable steps should be taken to find out if someone
is disabled or not, but care needs to be taken not to infringe on the

disabled person’s dignity or privacy.

Indirect Discrimination

This occurs because of rules, policy or practice that applies to all but
puts people with particularimpairments at a disadvantage when
compared to a non-disabled person and cannot be shown to be justified

and meet a legitimate aim in a balanced, reasonable and fair way.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Reasonable Adjustments

In most environments, reasonable adjustments have to be made to
remove physical or any other types of barrier - created by policies or
attitudes for example - that could make it difficult or impossible for
disabled customers to use or access the services or information being

provided.

The aim of making the adjustment is to ensure that a disabled person
(e.g. someone who may be deaf or visually impaired or have difficulty
in walking) can use an organisation’s service to a standard as close as
reasonably possible to the standard usually offered to a non-disabled

person.

The duty to make changes is anticipatory. The organisation must think
in advance about how people who have impairments may be affected in

accessing their services and what could be done to remove any barriers.

If an organisation finds there are barriers to access for disabled people,
then it has a duty to consider making changes to remove or adjust any
barriers to access. It will be up to the organisation to consider if the

adjustments are reasonable to make.

If barriers to access are identified and the organisation concerned
believes they are not reasonable to remove, alter, avoid or provide the

service by an alternative means, then the organisation should make a

page 27 of 42 pages



9y abed

Appendix 1. Disability & Legislation (cont’d)

dated record of the reasoning along with any evidence to support this The duty to make reasonable adjustment falls into three main areas.
belief. The evidence could be: Service providers can:
«  Aletter from the local conservation officer stating that H h hi g H - L
proposed changes to a listed building are not allowed «  Change the way things are done — the provision, criterion
or practice

« Aquote from a lift supplier giving details of installation
Costs.
«  Provide auxiliary aids and services
«  Thisinformation should also include a review date.

« Anorganisation has to do what is reasonable, which will » Overcome a physical feature by

depend on a wide range of factors. These include but are
not limited to: . removing the feature, or

+ Cost o
« alteringit, or

«  Disruption caused in making the adjustment

+ Resources, other than cost, available + avoidingit, or

«  Thetypes of service being offered « providing services by alternative methods.

+ Time needed to make adjustment.
) What is seen as reasonable will depend on the type of service being

Adjustments do not have to be made to make the building or service offered, along with the size of the provider, taking into account the
more accessible if it will lead to a breach of any other legal duties. nature of the service and resources available to it.

However, this is likely to be in exceptional circumstances and only where

the other legal duties are very specific, and the service provider has no

other choice.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021 page 28 of 42 pages



J¥ abed

Appendix 1. Disability & Legislation (cont’d)

Things to consider are:

«  Would the suggested steps be effective in improving

accessibility?

« Isitpractical for the service provider to take the

recommended steps?
« Whatis the financial cost of the recommendations?

«  How much disruption will be caused while making the

adjustments?
. What financial resources are available?

«  How much has already been spent making improvements

to access?

What other resources (financial or otherwise) are available?

Evidence should be gathered for not making adjustments. For example,
this could show the financial implications, disruption caused and
the number of visitors affected. This evidence should be recorded
and reviewed. It could then be part of a defence against a claim of

discrimination.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Harassment

This is unwanted behaviour related to disability that has the purpose or
effect of violating a person’s dignity or creating an intimidating, hostile,
degrading, humiliating or offensive environment. This is unlawful

treatment.

Victimisation

Itis unlawful for a person to be treated badly if they:

«  Make a complaint about discrimination or harassment

relating to the Act, or
+  Help another person make a complaint, or
+  Are believed to have helped or complained.

This applies whether or not the person being treated badly is disabled.

Positive Action

Positive action toward disabled people is allowed; this can be used to
target a particular group, in this case disabled people. Guidance states
that under-representation of a group of people should not be assumed

and that research is needed to confirm that they are.

page 29 of 42 pages



gy abed

Appendix 1. Disability & Legislation (cont’d)

Public sector Equality Duty

The public sector Equality Duty is Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.% It
applies to public bodies listed in Schedule 19 of the Act.

Schedule 19 includes sections such as armed forces, broadcasting and
local government, Examples of public bodies listed under health, social
care and social security include: an NHS trust; a primary care trust; a

special health authority; the Care Quality Commission, schools.

The Equality Duty ensures that all public bodies play their partin making
society fairer by tackling discrimination and providing equality of

opportunity for all.
General Duties

Under the Equality Duty a public body when exercising its functions must

have due regard to the need to:
. eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation
and any other conduct that is prohibited under the Act;

. advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share
it; and

. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

It must consider its duties under the Act across its duties, as a service
provider and an employer. For example, a hospital trust cannot ignore its

duties to staff while meeting those to patients.

It must not directly or indirectly discriminate, harass or victimise anyone

in relation to one or more protected characteristics.

Specific Duties

Specific Duties place further duties on public bodies to enhance
performance of the General Duties. They must demonstrate their
compliance with the Equality Duty and set themselves specific,

measurable equality objectives.
A public body is required to:
. publish equality information to demonstrate its compliance

with the general duties

. prepare and publish one or more equality objectives it aims to

achieve under the general duties

Listed Buildings
The Equality Act does not override existing legislations such as Planning
Permission or Listed Building Approval. However, this does not mean

that listed buildings cannot be altered: many have already been altered

page 30 of 42 pages



61 abed

Appendix 1. Disability & Legislation (cont’d)

numerous times through their history. We suggest you work with
conservation officers and English Heritage to make any alterations that

you feel would be a benefit.

Saying ‘the building has listed status, so we can’t do anything’ is not
enough. Evidence that a particular change is not allowed should

be obtained from the local conservation officer or English Heritage.
Alternatives should then be sought to overcome the particular access

issue.

Building Regulations
Building Regulations Approved Document M - Buildings other than
dwellings 2000:2015 Edition (AD M) provides guidance on access and

facilities for disabled people in non-domestic buildings and dwellings.

AD M also gives reference to Part K of the Building Regulations
(Protection from falling, collision and impact) (Part K). Where there
appears to be conflict between the guidance in AD M and Part K, AD M

takes precedence.

Under the Equality Act it is seen as not reasonable for service providers,
a public authority carrying out its functions or an association, to remove
or alter a physical feature that has been provided in accordance with the
design standards/objectives of AD M. This lasts for 10 years from when

construction was completed, or the feature installed.

However, this does not mean there is a total exemption from the

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Equality Act. Features that are outside the scope of AD M may still require
reasonable adjustment and reasonable adjustment in other ways, such
as policies should be considered when features do fall within the scope
of AD M and are disabling.

Equality Act, Building Regulations, BS 8300 &
Accessibility Compliance

The Equality Act is not about buildings or physical features. It is about
not putting disabled people at a substantial disadvantage, and if
physical features have a disabling effect, then reasonable adjustments

need to be made to remove that effect.

The Equality Act covers buildings (irrespective of age) and sites. For
example, this includes parks, whether used free orin return for payment
or as a place of employment. Importantly, they are part of the public

realm, which is usually the responsibility of a local authority.

However, the Equality Act does not give guidance about design or where
to get design guidance when looking to make environments accessible.
It cannot therefore indicate whether a building or site complies with the

legislation.

Building Regulations apply to new builds and extensions. Building
Regulations are lawful and compulsory, whereas deviation from the AD
Mis allowed, subject to approval, as this is only guidance. A physical

feature designed to meet building regulations or the AD M is not

page 31 of 42 pages



0g abed

Appendix 1. Disability & Legislation (cont’d)

necessarily Equality Act compliant.

BS8300-1 & 2: 2018 Design of an accessible and inclusive built
environment. External & Buildings. Code of Practices, is guidance only.
Itis frequently used as a benchmark to assess accessibility of the built
environment and is seen as complementing AD M. It exceeds the scope
of design features when compared to AD M. Following this guidance will

not mean a building is Equality Act compliant.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

page 32 of 42 pages



Appendix 2. Handrail design

Handrail design

Wales: 40 - 45 mm

Wales: 60 - 75 mm Eng: 32 - 50 mm

Eng:50-75 mm

50 mm
maximum

TS abed

50 mm
minimum

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Wales: Non-circular handrail
preferably 50 mm wide with
rounded edges.

Eng: Non circular handrail
50 mm wide 39 mm

deep having rounded edges

Wales: 15 mm min radius
Eng: 50 mm min radius

50 mm
minimum

Scotland provides no guidance on handrail design

page 33 of 42 pages



2S abed

Recommendations by Priority

Reference Current Finding

2.3 Kissing 2.3.1 This refuge area (the space free of the gate swing) has a space of

gate approximately 1500 x 1500 mm. This should allow a manual wheelchair

entrance user space to move, it will not be suitable for scooter users. At the time
of my visit the vehicle gate next to this was open. At the other entrances
during opening hours there is no obstacle to access. We recommend
that the main gate be held in the open position when the cemetery is
open as this is far easier for people to use rather than the kissing gate. If
worried about unauthorised vehicles using this entrance it could be that

the gate can be partially opened and held in place.

3 Site - car 3.7 The volume and speed of traffic around the cemetery is going to
parking be low. However people with hearing or sight loss may not hear or see
and vehicle  vehicles approaching. People with sight loss may look at a car and
access the driver think they have been seen and assume it is safe to proceed.
People with cognitive impairments or neurodiverse people don’t
always make eye contact with drivers or understand the risks of moving
vehicles. Making eye contact and body language between driver and
pedestrian allows people to get a ‘feeling’ of what the other may do.
For these reasons | recommend that the present policy of only opening

vehicle access when requested is maintained.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation Priority
Have the main gate held in the open position when the M
cemetery is open.

Maintain current policy around site access. M

page 34 of 42 pages



eqG abed

Reference

4 Site -
pedestrian

routes

7 Chapel

7 Chapel

7 Chapel

1 Getting to
the site

Current Finding

4.5 There had been heavy snow fall the day before my site visit,
although there was a thaw paths remained icy. There should be a policy
of ensuring paths remain free from potential slips and trips, this could

be snow/ice or fallen vegetation.

7.3 The entrance door is fitted with a ring style handle, this appears to
be an original feature. It should be possible to operate door handles
with the use of a clenched fist. People will not be using this building on
their own, staff can open and close the door if a person cannot use the

handle or the door is too heavy.

7.5 There are two steps up to the altar and lectern. The lectern should
be brought to the lower level if people are expected to speak and

cannot use the steps.

7.6 At the time of my visit it was not possible to assess the illuminance

levels as there was too much daylight entering the building.

1.2 Public footways are firm and even. Dropped kerbs are provided at
street crossing points but no tactile warning (blister paving). To the
controlled crossing next to the kissing gate entrance blister paving has

been provided.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation Priority
Ensure paths remain free from slips and trips. M
Ensure staff provide assistance if required. M
Move the lectern to the lower level if people cannot use M
the steps.

Check the illuminance levels when daylight is poor and M

increase if necessary.

Approach the Highways Department of the responsible 2
authority requesting that tactile paving is provided to

dropped kerbs at pedestrian crossing points.

page 35 of 42 pages



¥G abed

Reference

2.1 Vehicle

entrance

2.1 Vehicle

entrance

2.1 Vehicle

entrance

2.1 Vehicle

entrance

Current Finding

2.1.1 Only the vehicle entrance has signage advising that this is the
Tower Hill Cemetery. Providing signage at all entrances advising of the
cemetery name is recommended to help visitors new and old to the
site not only know they have arrived at the correct site but also to easily

identify the entrances.

2.1.2 The vehicle entrance has signage that can be seen from the road
but nothing to indicate that it leads to the car park or that it gives

vehicle access to the upper area of the cemetery.

2.1.3 The signage at the entrance just within the grounds is in a notice
board. This has a plan of the cemetery and information about opening
times etc. Itis placed at a height that will make reading it difficult from a

seated position or for people of short stature.

2.1.4 There is no information about the topography of the site. There
are a number of paths that have steep gradients. A terrain guide details
the paths around the site and the gradients/lengths of any paths that
are not level. It can also show where seating can be found. This could
be available at the entrances and/or on the web site so that it can be

downloaded.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation Priority

Provide signage to cemetery entrances advising of the 2

cemetery name.

Provide information about car parking and vehicle 2

access that can be easily viewed from the road.

Provide information at an accessible height and 2

location that has firm and even ground beneath it.

Provide a terrain guide. 2
page 36 of 42 pages



GG abed

Reference Current Finding

2.2 Welch 2.2.1 The Welch entrance has open gates and leads directly off the
roundabout  public footway. There is no signage at the entrance. Providing a site

entrance map and a terrain guide would be of benefit to many people.

2.3 Kissing 2.3.2 Thereis no signage at the entrance. Providing a site map and a
gate terrain guide would be of benefit to many people.

entrance

3 Site - car 3.1 Thereis a car park on the site but this is not signposted. On the day
parking of my visit snow was on the ground covering up any markings. Providing
and vehicle  post mounted signage helps in these instances to identify parking bays

access and the parking area.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation Priority

Provide information about the site (eg opening times), 2

a map of the site and a terrain guide.

Provide information about the site (eg opening times), 2

a map of the site and a terrain guide.

Provide signage advising the car park location along 2
with ground painted and post mounted signage

advising of the parking area and parking bays.

page 37 of 42 pages



9G abed

Reference

3 Site - car
parking
and vehicle

access

Current Finding

3.2 The parking area is positioned between railings but also forms part
of the vehicle access route around the site. Vehicle access is required
not only for members of the public but also contractors and the

grounds team.

The parking area could be defined as the space between the diamond
railings which is approximately 7 m wide x 17 m long. This area has to
allow vehicles pass by those that are parked in it. If you take the width
of the service road which is approximately 2.6 m as the minimum width

required for vehicles that leaves a 4.4 m for vehicles to park in.

An accessible parking bay is 4.8 m long with 1.2 m wide hatching to the
rear, overall length 6 m. Cars will need to be parked on the diagonal to
the diamond fencing or parallel to it if the 2.6 m access route is to be

maintained.

The width of an accessible parking bay is 2.4 m with 1.2 m wide hatching
to one side, it is preferable if it is to both sides, the overall width is 3.6

m. The length of this area is approximately 17 m which means that four
accessible bays could be provided in this area. BS8300- 1: 2018 states
that religious buildings and crematoria should provide a minimum of 2

spaces or 6% whichever is the greater.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation

Provide at least two accessible parking bays.

Priority

page 38 of 42 pages



Reference

3 Site - car
parking
and vehicle

access

8 Signage

)G abed

4 Site -
pedestrian

routes

Current Finding Recommendation

3.3 BS8300-1: 2018 also states that enlarged bays should be providedto  Provide the same number of enlarged bays as

any car parking area. An enlarged bay is the same overall size, including  accessible bays.
hatchings, of an accessible bay. It is intended that these bays are

available for anyone to use but allow the extra space that someone who

is temporarily disabled for example a broken leg or parents wanting

to get children in and out of cars to fully open the car doors. They also

allow for increasing the accessible bay provision without having to

remark a whole section of car park.

8.1 There is no wayfinding signage in the grounds. A visitor most Provide way finding signage.

probably wont know which is the consecrated or un-consecrated
chapel or which are the different parts of the cemetery when comparing
to the layout plan that can be found at the entrance and car park

notice boards. Providing basic wayfinding signage is recommended,

for example this could point to the different chapels, car park and

memorial wall.

4.2 Generally the paths have an even surface, particularly to the top of Provide flush joints between concrete slabs.

the cemetery. It is where the paths are concrete that the joints between
slabs have moved, these have the potential to cause tripping. We
recommend that maintenance is carried out to make the joints between
slabs flush.

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Priority

page 39 of 42 pages



Reference

4 Site -
pedestrian
routes

-

Q

Q .

® 5 Seating

a1

(e
8 Signage

Current Finding Recommendation

4.4 Where paths have gradients that are steeper than 1:20 they should Consider providing handrails alongside paths with

be treated as a ramp. That means handrails should be provided. The gradients steeper than 1:20.

path leading from the kissing gate has a handrail to one side. The top
of the handrail is between the recommended height range of 900-
1000 mm. The handrail is rectangular in shape, it can still be used but
the preferred shape is round or oval. The supports do not allow the
user continual grip as the hand has to be removed when a support is
reached. It should be possible to run a hand along the full length of the

handrail and not have to move it because of a support.

5.3 None of the seats provide an inclusive space alongside for a Provide seating with an inclusive space alongside for

wheelchair user to sit. Best practice is also to provide some seating wheelchair users.
with the arm rest set in one seat width allowing a wheelchair user to

side transfer. This space should have a firm and even base with level

access to it that also is firm and even. It is probably unreasonable to add

retrospectively but any new seating should incorporate this.

8.2 There are engraved marker stones to different burial areas, these Ensure text is highlighted.

can only be read from close up. The engraved text to these stones is not
always easy to identify as the highlighting to the lettering has worn in
some instances. The word ‘SECTION’ is in upper case, it is easier to read

if the first letter is in upper case with the rest in lower case as in ‘Section’

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Priority

page 40 of 42 pages



65 abed

Reference

4 Site -
pedestrian

routes

7 Chapel

Current Finding

4.3 There are a number of paths that have steep inclines as an example
the path from the Chapel heading up to the vehicle entrance and the
path from the kissing gate have a gradient of around 1:7. These follow
the natural contours of the land. Paths should have gradients no steeper
than 1:12, it is not seen as feasible to alter these. Some people will find
steps easier to use than inclines, a long-term aim should be to add

these if feasible.

7.4 There are fixed pews within the building. There is no inclusive space
for a wheelchair user to sit. At the present time a wheelchair user would
have to either sit in the aisle or at the front of the pews. The pews are
raised up approximately 80 mm with a gap of 400 mm to reach the pew
seat. A space for a wheelchair user should be 900 mm wide x 1400 mm

deep plus unobstructed access route of 900 mm (preferably 1200 mm).

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

Recommendation

Consider adding steps alongside steep paths.

Provide an inclusive space for wheelchair users to sit.

Priority

page 41 of 42 pages



09 abed

Access Audit / Tower Hill Cemetery - Witney / January 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

page 42 of 42 pages



W
Auoud

2 "21N1.1S 10YS J0 2]doad 10} JO UOIISOd Paleas e Wolj YNJIIp
y1eaUSq punoJ3 UaAs pue Wil Sey eyl uoiedo] 1 Suipeas axew |jim Jeyl 3ySiay e paoe)d 13| 239 sawi} Suiusdo Inoge uonewojul pue Ais1awsd
pue 1ydIay 2]qIssa2e Ue 1e UONBWIOJUI 3PIAOL4 Y3 JO ue|d e sey S|y | "pJeoq 32130U e Ul S| Spunold ayy uiyimisnl duenus sy e adeusdisayl €17

‘peol sy} .
Wolj pamaln A|1Sea ag Ued 1ey} SS322e 311y *A1219Wad 2y} Jo ease Jaddn ay3 03 SS8d2e 3)21Y3A SIAIS 11 eyl Jo yled Jed ay) 0} Spes)
pue 8unjled 18D INOQE UONBWIOUI BPINOId 1Y) 31edipul 03 SUlyIOU ING Peos B3 WOy USSS 3G Ued Jey} a3eudis Sey 9dUeljua apIysAay] 71T

'S9dUBIIUD
ay1 AJnuapi Ajisea 01 0s|e INq d3iS 1921102 Y3 18 panllle dAey A3y} mouy Ajuo Jou 1S Y3 0} plo
"BWeu AI1aWad 3yl JO  pue Mau SI0}IsiA djay 0} PapuUaLLIWI0Da] S| dWweu A1ajawad ay3 jo Suisiape saduelius |je 1e 93eudis

guisinpe saoueiud Aia1awad 01 a8eudis apinold  Suipinold "A1a1awa)) |)IH Jamo | 3yl SI siyl 1ey3 Sulsiape a8eudis Sey 3dUeIUS 3RIYSABYIAUO T'T'T
'SjUl0a BUISSOID UBLIISapad

1e squay paddoup o3 papinolid si Suined ‘papinoid uaaq sey Suined

)10l 1ey3 Bunsanbau Aysoyine s|gisuodsal  1a1s1|q 9oue3US 83e3 Suissp ay3 03 1xau Sulssod pa)joJiuod 8yl o] “(Buined Ja1siq) uiusem a)i1oe)

a3 jo Juswpedaq skemy3iH auy yoeouddy ouIng syuiod 3uissold 19.1S 1 papiaoid ale sqiey paddoiq "usAS pue wiij a1 sAemioo) 21iqnd ¢'T

"AJessadau Jl asealoul pue jood ‘8ulp|ing syl duniaius ysiAep yonw
S11y81jAep usym S|aA3] SdUBUILNY)I BY3 HI3YD 00] SeM 3131 SB S|9A3] 9DUBUIWNI|I 3Y} SSISSE 03 9]q1ssod Jou sem i HSIA AW JO.aWll 8Y3 IV 9°L
'sdajs ay3 asn jouued "sda1s 9yl SN JouUed pue yeads 0} pajoadxa ale ajdoad Ji

a)doad Ji |ans] JamO) a3 0} UI)D3) 3U1 A0 |9A3] 19MO] 343 03 3y3noiq aq PINOYS UIS123)] dY "UIS1I3] pue Jelje ay} 01 dn sdals om] ale a1ayl '/
"AM\B3Y 00} S| J00p 3y}

10 3)pueYy 81 asn Jouued uosiad e JI J0op 3y} 3S0J> pue Uado Ued yje1s ‘Umo Jiayl uo 3uip|ing siyl

Suisn aq 10U |)im 3]doad IS} PaYdUID e Jo SN dY3 YIm sa|puey Joop a3esado 03 9)qissod aq pjnoys

‘paJinbal § 2duelsisse apiaoid Jjels ainsug 1| "a1n3edy [eudiio ue aq 03 sieadde siy3 ‘S|puey 3143 Sull B y3im paly S| J0Op 9dURIUS Y| £

’ "UOI3B}DFIA UB||BY 1O 321/MOUS 3G PINOI SIY3

‘sduy pue sdijs |enuajod wouy 9314 ulewsl syled uunsus jo Aonjod e aq pinoys aiay] Ad1 paujews

'sdin pue sdijs wouj 9344 ulewal syjed ainsug  syjed meyy e sem a1ayl y3noye ‘Usia als Aw aiojaq Aep syl ||ej mous Aneay usaq pey syl Gy

‘paulelueW S| pa3sanbal uaym ssadde 921y Sutuado Ajuo jo Ao1jod Juasaid syl Jey) puswiwiodal

| SUOseal 853y} Jo4 ‘op Aew Jayio ay31eym jo 3ulasy, e 193 01 9|doad smojje ueuisapad pue

JaALIp usamiaq a8en8ue] Apoq pue 10e1U0D 943 Sue "S9]21USA SBUIAOW JO SYSI Sy} pUelSIapUN

10 SIBALP Y1im 10B1U0D 343 axew shem|e 3,uop m._aowa 35J9AIpOIN3aU 10 Sjuswliedw aAIUS0D

yiim a)doad ‘paado.d 03 8jes S} SWNSSE PUB US3S U33G dARY ASY) YUIY] JSALIP 8y] pue 1ed

e 1e%00] Aew sso] 1y8is yum a)doad ‘Suiyoeoidde sa)o1yan 835 1o Jeay Jou Aew sso| 3y3is Jo Sulieay

dURNUI IPIYIAT'T

2UBRNUIIPIYIAT'C €

9JURLUI IPIYIAT'T T

aysayro3Sument T

1adeyd L 1¢

19deyd L 0C

Page 61

12deyd L 8T

sajnoJ ueliysapad -3is ¢ 9T

"Ssa00e YIS punoJe Adijod Jusund uieluep  yim a)doad JanamoH ‘mo) aq 01 Sulod S| A131aWwad 3y} punoJe dljjell Jo paads pue aWN|oA Y| /'€ © 3)21yaA pue Sunjled Jed -3Us € 7T

oJE|U Ul P9y puE pouguuv \/__ﬂ_tﬂr_ ﬂ:L_ uey

2188 8y 1eY1 3G P|NO 31 3DULJIUS SIY3 BUISN SIDIYaA PASLIOYINeUN IJNOGe palliom J| *a1e3 Sulssiy

ay1 ueyy Jayel asn o} a)doad 1oy Jaisea Jey s siy3 se uado s| Aiszawad ay3 usym uonisod usdo

dY3 Ul pjay a9 91e8 ulew ay3 18y} pUSWILLODBL S "SS8ID€ 0} 9]23SqO OU SI 319y} sinoy 3ujuado

Suunp saouelIuL Y10 ay3 1y "usdo Sem SIy1 01 1xaU 2183 3]21YaA 3Y3 HSIA AW JO SWI1 3Y3 Iy 'SIasN

‘uado s| A191aWad 9Y) UBYM  13100DS J0J 3)gBINS 3] JOU ||IM )l ‘SAOW 0] 32edS JaSN JIBYD|93yM |enuewl e mojje pjnoys siy | “wu

uolyisod uado ayy ul pjay 1.8 ulew Y1 aAeH  00ST X 00GT Ajl2lewixoidde jo aoeds e sey (uims a1e3 syj Jo 3.4 2eds ay3) eale a3nyau siy | TeT
uonepuaWWO0I9Yy . sSuiputy Juan)

asuespud aes Suissiy €' L
9 #



‘||lem [eLIOWSW PU yled Jed ‘sjpaeyd

Jua1ayIp 8y 03 3utod pInod siy3 ajdwexa 10} ‘papusiliodal s| 33eudis Suipulyem 5158q BUIPINOIG
'SpJe0q a210U yJed Jed pue 3dUeI3ud 3y} Je punoy aq ued ey ueid 3noke| ayy 03 Suiedwod

usym Ausiawad ayy Jo sued 1ualayip ay3 3Je Yoiym Jo |adeyd paieldasuod-un Jo pajeldasuod

"98eu8is Buipuly Aem apinold  dY3 SIYdIym mous| Juom Ajgeqo.d jsow Josiay 'spunoid ayi ul a3eusis Suipuljkem ou st a1ayl T'8
M4EU JkJ JU UUILIDS I|UYM E JEWdl U} sulney

Inoym uoisinoid Aeq 91gissedde ay) BuISesIdUl J0) MO]|e 0S|e A3y | "SI00p Jed ayi uado Ajinj 03

sied o In0 pue uj ualpjiyd 398 03 Suipuem syualed 10 33) usyo.q e ajdwexs Joj pajgesip Ajlieijodwsa]

S| OYM SUOSWIOS 1) 3oedS BJIXS 3Y} MOJ||e INg 3SN 0} dUOAUE 10} 3)ge|leAe ale sAeq asayl

'sAeq a)qissadde  1ey) papuaiul si 1| *Aeq a]qissaode ue jo 's3uiyoley Sulpnioul ‘9zis ||elano swes ayy s| Aeq padiejus

se skeq pagie|us Jo Jaquinu awes ayi apinold Uy ‘eale Supjled 1ed Aue 0} papinoid aq pinoys sAeq padie|us eyl ss1e1s 0s|e 8107 ‘T-00£8Sd £°¢ e @]121yaA pue Sunjied Jjed -aUs € TT

"1312218 83U SI J9AIYDIYM 049 JO S22edS 7 JO WNWIUIW B 3piAcld pjnoys eljojewsld pue s3uipjing
snoig1aJ 1eyl $931.1S 8T0Z T -00£8Sd "aie SIY} Ul papiacid aq pjnod sAeq a]qISsad2e INoy Jey) suesw
yoiym wi 2 T Aj@1ewixoldde s| ease s|y3 o Yi3ua] ay ] "W 9°€ SI YIPIM ||RISAO U] ‘SapIS 410G 01 SI 11 JI
3)qeJajaid s131 ‘apis auo 03 ulydley apim W Z'T Yim W 'z St Aeq Suiyied a)qissadde ue Jo yipim ay |
"paulelulew 3q 03 S| 93N0J SS8228

W 9z a3yl J1 31 03 |9)jeled Jo Buldus) puowelp ay3 03 [euo3e|p ayl uo payled aq 0} pasu ||Im Sie)

"W 9 y18ua] ||e1an0 ‘1l 8y} 01 Sulydley apim W z'T Yiim 3uo) w g+ St Aeq Suijied a)qissadde uy

"Ul y1ed 0} S3|21UaA 1O W ' B SIABS] JBY3 S3]D1YSA J0) paJinbal

YIPIM WnWiUIW a4y3 se W 9'z Aj@1ewixoldde s yd1ym peos 3dIAISS aU3 JO YIpIm 2y 8.l NoA | 11 ul
payJed ale 1ey1 asoyy Aq ssed sa|d1yan moj|e 01 sey eale siy] “Buoj w /T x apim w / Ajgjewixoidde
SIY2IyM SSUIjies pUOWEIP 3] U3aMIaq 32eds ay) Se paulap aq pjnod ease Supjed ay |

) v "wea) spunois sy} pue

$J012811U0D OS|e Ing 21jgnd ay1 JO SIaquiawl 10} A|UO 10U palinbal S| ss822. 3]2IY3A "9MS SU3 puno.e

'skeq Bupjied 2]gISsad0e OM1 1SBD] 18 PINOId  SIN0J SSIDDB 3121YA 3Y3 Jo Wed swiioj os|e Ing s3uljies usamiaq pauoiiisod st ease Sunjied ay | 7'c e 3)21yan pue Suiyed Jed -34S € 0T

'sneq
3unyed pue ease Supyied ayi jo 3uisiape a8eusis ‘ease upied ayy pue sAeq Suped Ajiauapi
pajunow 3sod pue pajuled punoid yim 3uoje 03 saoueISUl 953y} Ui sdjay a3eu8)s pajunows 3sod ulpinold “s3uiyiew Aue dn Surisaod puno.3

a3eusis g ¢

uonedo| yed Jed ayl Suisiape a3eusis spin0ld 3yl UO SeM MOUS 1ISIA AW Jo Aep ay3 uQ "paisodudis 10U S| Iy} Ing 93S a43 uo yied Jed e s aJsy| T°¢ e 3)21yaA pue Sunjied Jed - 9IS €

"apIn3 ule.lal e pue a)is ay3 Jo dew e ‘(sewfy "9]doad Auew 031 31jouaq
Juiuado 3s) 811s 83 INOGE UOBWIOJU] SPIACI J0 9q pjnom apin3 uje.1a} e pue dew aIs e SUIPIAOI4 "8dURJIUS SY3 18 98euBis ou Sl alay] 7€
"9)doad

"3pINg ule.Ja) e pue a)s ay3 jo dew e ‘(sswn Auew 031 11Jauaq Jo aq pjnom apin3 ute.sa} e pue dew 31is e SUIPIAOIH "@dUBIIUS 3Y) 18 a8eusls
Suiuado 3s) 211s o431 INOge UOIBWIO)UI BPIACI ou s aJay] ‘Aemioo} d1gnd ay3 Jjo Aj32a11p spes| pue se3e8 uado sey aduesjus Ya|om ayL 12

"PapEOJUMOP 3 UBD 3 1ey) OS 91IS §aM U1 UO JO/puUe S0UeIIUS 3y}

1e 3|ge|ieAe aq pjNod SIY | ‘pPUNOj 8 Ued 3ulIeas 31ayMm MOUS OS|e UeD 3| '|aA3] 10U ale Jey) syied Aue

jo syr8uaj/siuaipesd ayl pue a)is ay3 punode syied ay3 s|ie3sp apIng ulesal v ‘siusipesd dasls aney

‘opInd ulela) e apIN0Ld 1Byl syled Jo Jaquuinu e a.e a1ay ] "91Is ay3 jo AydesSodol ay3 Inoge uoijeuwojul ou S 343Y] T

9duejud aes Suissiy £°¢

95URIIUD INOGRPUNO YIIPM T°T

dURAUI IPIYSAT'T

Page 62



SIOSN J1YD)23YM 10} 3DBdS SAISN|OUI UR SPIACI] "HS 0} JasSN Jieyd|aaym e 1oy 3deds aAISN|oUl ou S| sy “SUlp]ing 3y ulylim smad paxiy ale a19y] ¥/
"B|qIsesy Jl 858y} PPE 01 8¢ PINOYS Wie Wis}-3uo| e

‘sauljdul UeY) asn 03 Jaisea sdais puly ||im 3)doad W oS "9Say3 JS3|e 0} 9|qISes) Se Uaas Jou I ‘ZT:T

uey) 1odaa1s ou sjudlpe.s aney pINoys sy1ed "PUB| 843 JO SINOIUOD |eINjeuU 8y} MO)|0) 8Say L "/:T

punoue jo 1uajpess e aney a1e8 Buissp| U3 woJj yied ay1 pue sdueIIUS 3]d1YysA a4l 01 dn Suipeay

‘syned daais spisduole sdais Suippe Japisuo)  jadey) ay3 woyj yied ay3 sjdwexa ue se sauldul daa1s sney 1eyl syied Jo ssquinu e ale a8yl €'y
: " UOI129S, Ul SB 3SBD JI3MO] Ul 1S3 U} Y1IM 3SBD 12aan Ul S| 193313) IS11)

a1 JI peas 01 Jaisea S| ‘ased Jaddn ul i ,NOILDIS, PIOM Sy | "S3DURISUI SWOS Ul UIOM Sey Buliaia]
ayy 01 8unydny8iy ayy se Ay13uap! 03 Asea sAem|e Jou S| S9UOIS 353L] 01 1x3) panedus ay] “dn

"pa1y31ysIy S1Ix81 2INSUT  350J0 WOJ) peal 3q AJUo UeD 33U} ‘Seale [eLINg JUSJa)Ip 0] S3UOLS JayJew paAei3us ale alayl 7’8
“SIY4 94810UI0DU|

pjnoys Suneas mau Aue 1nq AjaAi0adsolia. ppe 03 3jqeuosealun Ajgeqoud s “usas pue
W1 S1 OS] 1Byl }1 O3 SS3DIB |9A3] U3IM 3SB] USAS PUB W) B 9ABY pInoys adeds Sy | "Jajsues) ap|s 0}
"SJ3SN JIBYD)3aYM 10} SpIsSUOle  19SN Jleyd|aaym e SUIMO||e YIPIM 1BaS U0 U1 1aS 15al Wie syl Yyiim 3uiless swos apiaoid 01 osje s|

aoeds aAIsn|oul Ue Y)m Suness apinoid 8d11oe.d 1sag IS 03 Jasn Jieydjaaym e 1oy apis3uoie aeds aaisn|oul ue apiroid s1ess ay) JO SUON £°G
Huuulin e wc o>l _WLQ(_ 41 onvuwl

01 3ABY 10U pue Jlelpliey ay3 jo y3dua) ||ny ay3 Suoje puey e uni 0} 8|qissod aq pjnoys 3| ‘paydeal

si11oddns e uaym panowal aq 03 sey puey ayy se did |enuijuod 1asn syl moj|e Jou op spoddns

ay] "Jeno Jo punoi sl adeys pauagaid ay1 Ing pasn aq ||is ued 3l ‘adeys ui sejndueidal s |lelpuey

3] "WW 000T-006 Jo d3uel 1313y PapUSWIWIOIaI BY) USaM]S] SI [leipuey ay] Jo dol 8y "apIs

‘07T ueyl Jadaals siuaipel8 yim  auo o3 jlelpuey e sey a3e3 3uissiy syl wouj Suipes) yied ay | "papiacid og pjnoys sjieipuey sueaw

syed spis3uoje sjieipuey Suipinoid Japisuod) ey dwel e se pajeal} aq pinoys Asyl 0z:T ueyl Jadaals aue jeyl siuaipesd aney syied alsym vy

"4snyJ sgejs Uaam1ag siulof ayl 8yew 03 IN0 pallied S| 3DUBUSIUIEW 1Y) PUSWWOd3l ap Buiddiy
asned 01 jenualod ay) aAeY SS9 ‘PAAOUI dARY SOB|S Usam1aq Sulof ay3 1eyl 8324ou0d aue syled
'SQR|S 3)242U0D U33M13G S1UI0f YSN]y SpIncid 2yl a1aym si 3 “Aiaiawad ay) jo doy ayy 03 Aluejndnsed ‘@depns usas ue aney syied ayy A||essusn 'y

jadeyd L 61

Page 63

sojnod uerysapad -a)s ¥ T

a3eusis 8 €7

Sunesss /T

saynoJ ueriysapad -33S & ST

sajnoJ uelysapad -as v €1



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8a

HALLS CEMETERIES AND ALLOTMENTS COMMITTEE

Date: 8t March 2021

Title: Allotments update

Contact Officer: Operations and Estates Officer — John Hickman
Background

The purpose of this report is to update councillor on the current position regarding the
allotments.

Current Situation

Hailey Road

The allotment association has asked if council can give consideration to installing a new
boundary fence to 3 sides of this site similar to that being installed at Windrush Place
allotments.

The allotment association states that the current fence is in poor condition, they are suffering
on going vandalism at the site with compost bins etc. pushed over. Teenagers are entering
the site and using the Poly Tunnels to sit and hang around in, there is no boundary fence to
the rear of the property’s gardens and residents of Eastfield Road use the allotments as a
shortcut to Farmers Close.

They are also requesting a new 6 foot tall vehicular gate and pedestrian gates with locking
capability so only tenants of the allotment association can gain access as at the other
allotments.

The Operations has asked if the issues are being reported on 101 to make the police aware.
Lakeside Allotments

The Operation and Estates Officer suggested to the Allotment Association that Witney Town
Council could provide a 330Itr compost bin to each tenant if this was preferred to the 3 bay
composting area as suggested by council, the Allotment Association discussed this with
tenants and state that tenants would prefer the communal 3 bay composting bays are
provided rather than these 33ltr bins being provided.

Following further flooding Issues again this year the Allotment Association has asked if there
is something that can be done about this issue. The Operations and Estates Officer has
checked the ditch that runs alongside the site and this is clear so not causing the issue. It
would appear that the ground level of the allotments is lower than the water level that is

Page 77



reached by Emma’s Dyke when heavy or persistent rain fall occurs can be higher than the
ground level therefore water from the ditch and Emma’s Dyke are able to flow into the
allotments. This also causes some concern that as Thames Water release untreated waste
into Colwell Brook and subsequently Emma’s Dyke during heavy or sustained rainfall could be
entering the allotment site and contaminating the soil.

Windrush Place Allotment

The allotment Association have sated that they would wish to have the community
composting bins at this site rather than council proving each tenant with a 330ltr composting
bin.

Works on the allotments by the builder’s consortium are nearly complete and the site will
hopefully be handed over to Witney Town Council in the near future. There is still a substantial
amount of work for Witney Town Council to complete hopefully these allotments can be
handed to the allotment association by the end of April if possible.

Newland Allotments

The Allotment Association have asked if council can provide an Asgard 1.58m x 2.24m secure
metal shed for these allotments so they are able to lock away the machinery used to keep the
site tidy.

Environmental impact

Having declared a Climate Change Emergency at its Council meeting on 26 June 2019 — with
this in mind Councillors should have due regard to the environmental impact of any decisions
they make with regard to its facilities and services it operates.

Risk
In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any
action it can take to limit or negate its liability.

Financial implications

Recommendations

Members are invited to note the report and consider the following:

1. The provision of 3 bay composting areas at both Lakeside and Windrush Place
Allotments.
The request that Council consider fencing Hailey Road Allotments

3. The request that council provide secure storage at Newland Allotments.
Council investigate the flooding issues at Lakeside Allotments.

Page 78



John,

We have a serious problem at Lakeside, in that the flooding there is preventing some of the tenants
from using their plots...see attached picture below, taken recently. The flooding was not limited to a
particular area but did appear to affect the lowest lying plots across the site. Would it be possible to
raise this with Council please, if only to get it on the agenda for discussion, with a view to discussing
with us what the possible solutions might be? The cause could be that the drainage ditch adjacent
to the allotments on the farmer’s field side of the path running up to the Lake from Ducklington
requires cleaning/dredging out, which might also be exacerbating the problem.

The picture below was taken in December, but the images in the attached zip file were taken earlier
in the year in Oct; however, the problem does appear to be occurring earlier and earlier in the

year. We will keep you updated with up to the minute photos of further flooding (that’s if we can
get our canoes onto the plots!!)

Look forward to having a catch up when your diary allows.

With Regards
Barry Jessel
Co-opted Chair and Windrush Place Rep

on behalf of Witney Allotment Association

http://witneyvallotments.co.uk/

Page 79


http://witneyallotments.co.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



0912 M £ £ ¥ » = 13%1
b scores matic X @ Welcometo' X € @52x74Asg X +

C & buyshedsdirect.co.uk/5-x-7-asgar 1 #&

Beautifully designed and full of practical features, this 5x7 metal
shed offers you supremely secure garden storage for your valuable
tools, lawnmower and other garden equipment.

e Impressive 10 year guarantee

Heavy-duty galvanised steel construction with an integral steel base

Large door with a drill and pick resistant 3-point locking system

Extensive ventilation system

Weatherproof, rust-resistant and maintenance-free

) Size & Specification

Select Colour

Flexistore 1522 Shed - Green +£739.99 v
Optional Shed Installation =
No Installation +£0.00 v

Accessories

Easy Fit Metal Ramp
+ £34.99

‘wooden Floor for Flexistore 1522
4.99

core Shelf (2 pack)

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



<{ Metal Sheds

5'2 x 7'4 Asgard Flexistore 1522 Metal Shed (1.58m x
2.24m)

Product code: BSD25490
Inc VAT

From £739.99
nr...n - - - —,,,W-

19-20 Weeks 10 Year Galvanised
Delivery Guarantee | Steel

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8b

6" February 2021.

Dear Mrs Groth,
Access to Witney Town Allotments: Witney Road, Ducklington, Oxon

| am writing to you in my capacity as owner of land off Witney Road, Ducklington, which includes the
private access road leading down to the WTC allotments.

We have had correspondence in the past, but for background information, my father J.F.Jones sold
WTC the allotment land to the Council in 1987. Ownership of a remaining parcel of land and the
front stretch of the access road, from Witney Road, remained with him, and has now passed to me.

The contract for sale provided for access across my road, for the allotment holders only, and for no
other purpose. Regretably, whenever | now visit my land | invariably find a vehicle parked along the
access, which has no connection with the allotments; and increasingly with Covid — 19, a regular flow
of people walking down the access road. Their reason is indisputably to visit your asset, the Witney
Lakes, as | have found when | stop people and enquire. As you will know, access to the Lakes, from
Ducklington, is via the public footpath across the field to the south. Whilst my private road may be
considerably more convenient, it is private, and what is happening is a continuing breach of contract
that is detrimental to the quiet enjoyment of my property.

Whilst wishing to be constructive on this matter, | hope you will appreciate the need for me to bring
this to your attention, as | do need to request that you take immediate appropriate measures to
bring an end to the breach of contract, and stop people, walking, cycling, or in cars, who are not
allotment holders, from using my private road for the purposes of accessing the Witney Lakes.

To resolve this matter, | would ask that you erect a full width gate, or gates, across the road, in
similar style to those you have at the access to the allotments, and positioned at the point where
your property begins, ie just in front (west) of the pull — in where your allotment holders shed used
to be sited. | would also like to see a sign placed behind the wire mesh advising people that access
along the road is private. | have on a number of occasions tried placing signs further along the road,
but to little avail, as being unprotected, they do not remain in place very long. However, given that
the trespass that is taking place is a direct result of the Witney Lakes, | do feel you have to accept
responsibility. When | do try to explain to people they are on private land, they ignore me without
compunction. | have no wish to impede the rightful access of allotment holders, and could only
suggest that a code operated digi lock be used for their ease of use.

| regret the need to write to you in these terms, and trust your Council will appreciate the position |
find myself in. | am happy to meet on site with an appropriate officer / councillor, but would ask that

Page 93



this matter is treated with the urgency it now requires as | cannot permit it to continue. | would
therefore ask for your early reply.

Yours faithfully,

Laurence Jones

Mrs. S. Groth,

The Clerk to the Council
Witney Town Council
Town Hall

Market Square

Witney

Oxon

0X28 6AG

Page 94



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Corn Exchange Working Party Minutes
	6 Operational Report
	Operational Report Picture 1
	Operational Report Picture 2

	7a Cemeteries Update
	7b Tower Hill Cemetery Access
	Access Audit Tower Hill Cemetery Witney Jan 2021
	Executive Summary
	Introduction
	The Report
	Terms and definitions
	The Access Audit
	1	Getting to the site
	2	Site – entrances
	2.1	Vehicle entrance
	2.2	Welch roundabout entrance
	2.3	Kissing gate entrance



	3	Site – car parking and vehicle access
	4	Site - pedestrian routes
	5	Seating
	6	Site - new path and entrance
	7	Chapel
	8	Signage

	Declaration
	Appendix 1.	Disability & Legislation
	Appendix 2.	Handrail design


	Recommendations by Priority

	Audit Recommendations
	Pathway Surfacing Quote 1
	Pathway Surfacing Quote 2
	New Access Gate Quote
	Creation of Boundary Access Quote 1
	Creation of Boundary Access Quote 2
	Creation of Boundary Access Quote 3

	8a Allotments Update
	Lakeside Flooding Correspondence - Witney Allotment Association
	Allotments Picture 1
	Allotments Picture 2
	Allotments Picture 3
	Allotments Picture 4
	Allotments Screenshot 1
	Allotments Screenshot 2

	8b Lakeside Allotments Access Road

